In 1888, the narrow gauge Aspen & Western Railroad was built southward from a connection with the Denver & Rio Grande Railroad Aspen Branch
(1887n) at Carbondale, Colorado, to reach coal deposits. The line ran southwest along the Crystal River then west along Thompson Creek to a coal mine
at Willow Park, a total of 13 miles. The railroad's owners realized by early 1889 that the veins were too poor for commercial extraction. In 1892, the line
was sold to the new Crystal River Railway and subsequently scrapped. The CR Railway’s goal was to tap coal from around Redstone with the possibility
of reaching marble and metallic ore deposits farther south. The narrow gauge CR Railway used the first 3 miles of the A&W (1888n) right-of-way from
Carbondale and south along the Crystal River past Thompson Creek towards a mine and coke oven facility under construction at Redstone. In 1893, the
tracks had reached a point 12 miles south of Carbondale and 5 miles shy of Redstone when construction was put halted due to the Silver Crash of 1893.
The CR Railway never made a revenue run. Despite the lack of operations, the route was converted to standard gauge around 1896.

In 1898, the CR Railway was purchased by the newly-incorporated Crystal River Railroad. The standard gauge CR Railroad started where the CR Railway
(1893n) left off (milepost 12) and continued south through Redstone and in 1899 reached its terminus 4 miles south of Redstone, giving a total length of
21 miles. In 1900, the CR Railroad built its narrow gauge Coalbasin Branch west from the standard gauge line at Redstone 6 miles (as the crow flies) up
Coal Creek (a tributary of the Crystal River) to the mine at Coalbasin (not shown separately on the Southwest Railroad History Map). In 1906, the new
Crystal River & San Juan Railroad extended the CR Railroad (1899) 7 miles along the Crystal River to the mining center of Marble. The CR&SJ
interchanged all traffic with the CR Railroad at Redstone, using 4 miles of trackage rights south of Redstone until 1910, when the CR&SJ obtained
trackage rights all the way to Carbondale. Also in 1910, two short railroads, a mile or two each, were built from the CR&SJ (1906) end-of-track at Marble
to quarries above Marble: the Treasury Mountain Railroad and the Colorado Yule Marble Electric Railroad (not shown separately on the Southwest
Railroad History Map). In 1917, the CR&SJ suspended operations due to a shutdown of the marble finishing plant in Marble, leaving only the CR
Railroad operating from Redstone north to Carbondale. In 1919, the CR Railroad ceased operations and sat idle until 1921 when it was leased to the
CR&SJ in anticipation of the marble works re-opening the following year. Operations continued for nearly two decades, hauling marble, livestock, and
supplies. However, with the cessation of marble production in 1941, the entire line down to Carbondale and all the branch lines were completely removed
and the steel used to support the war effort. Interestingly, marble for both the Lincoln Memorial and the Tomb of the Unknown Soldier came from
Marble and was hauled over the CR&SJ.

Northward view of the CR Railway (1893n) 8 miles south of Carbondale and 5 miles south of the intersection with the A&W (1888n) grade. The line was
standard-gauged in 1896 and was abandoned in 1943. The Crystal River is on the left.
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Southward view of the CR Railway (1893n) at the same location as previous. The alignment was regraded to make a road.
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Southeastward view of the CR Railroad (1899), which is the fill grade on the other side of the Crystal River, 4 miles south of the previous location and just
south of the “milepost 12” terminus of the CR Railway (1893n).
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Northward view of the CR Railroad (1899), now a gravel road, 2 miles south of the previous location and 1.5 miles north of Redstone.

© Copyright Steven H. Edelman, all rights reserved.



In 1882, John Cleveland Osgood was sent by the Chicago, Burlington and Quincy Railroad to conduct a survey of Colorado’s coal resources and found
that the Crystal River Valley's coal deposits were ideal for coking. The best deposits were around Redstone (this location) and by the end of 1899, with
railroad service in place, Redstone was the largest coking facility in the state with 249 ovens and a work force that accounted for 10% of all Colorado's
workers at the time. In 1900, the CR Railroad built its narrow gauge Coalbasin Branch west from the standard gauge line at Redstone (this location) 12
rail miles (6 miles as the crow flies) up Coal Creek (not shown separately on the Southwest Railroad History Map) to the new mining town of Coalbasin,
where the coal was most desirable for coking due to its purity and low ash content. Carloads of coal descended 2,200 feet from Coalbasin to Redstone
(this location), where coal was coked and transferred to standard gauge cars bound for Carbondale and other destinations. By 1909 all mining and
coking operations ended and Redstone was largely abandoned. At the outset of World War II, the community's population was down to 14 and the
ovens' steel supports along with the railroads’ rails were scrapped for the war effort. Today, the ovens are preserved by the Redstone Coke Oven Historic
District.

Northward view of some of the coke ovens at Redstone. I could find no maps showing the mainline route or the locations or number of sidings of the CR
Railroad (1899), but it is obvious that the curvature of the lines of ovens is parallel to the curvature of the railroad alignment to match a bend in the
Crystal River. It is all but certain that the mainline or a siding ran between the ovens and followed the curvature of the cleared area in the foreground
and into the center distance. I could find no evidence on the ground, in satellite imagery, or on historical maps to indicate the starting point or location
of the CR Railroad’s narrow gauge Coalbasin Branch (1900n)(not shown separately on the Southwest Railroad History Map).
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Northward view of some of the coke ovens a few steps east of the previous location, showing the other side of the ovens on the right side of the previous
photo. The walking path on the right parallels and could be on the alignment of the mainline or a siding of the CR Railroad (1899).
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Southward view at the same location as previous. The snow-capped peak in the left distance is 12,721-foot Chair Mountain, which looms over Marble
and the CR&SJ (1906) end-of-track at the headwaters of the Crystal River.
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